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5323 Harry Hines Boulevard
Dallas, Texas 75390

Dear Dr. Klein:

Public Health Service

Food and Drug Administration
Rockville, MD 20857

Ref: 08-HFD-45-1004

Between February 6 and 10,2006, Mr. Joel Martinez, representing the Food and Drug
~dministratio? (FDA), conducted an inves.tigation and met with your sub-investigator,
L . JM.D.2. to review the conduct of two clinical investigations of the
investigational drug[ . _ ]performed for
C. . ]

l . } A Randomized, Double-Blinded, Active Con~olled, Parallel Study to
Evaluate the Comparative Safe!}' and Efficacy ofi JandL Jor
Induction and Maintenance of[ J
r J- A Randomized, Double-Blinded, Active Controlled, Parallel Study to
!valuate the Short Term Efficacy and Safety oIl Jane[... Jfor

.J
This inspection is a part of the FDA's Bioresearch Monitoring Program, which includes
inspections designed to evaluate the conduct of research; to ensure that the rights, safety,
and welfare of the human subjects of those studies have been protected; and to ensure the
quality and integrity of data submitted for review.

From our review of the establishment inspection report, doc.uments submitteg,with that
report, and a March 15, 2006, response to the Form FDA 483 from Drt Jsent to
Investigator Martinez, we conclude that you did not adhere to the applicable statutory
requirements and FDA regulations governing the conduct of clinical investigations and the
protection of human subjects. We are aware that at the conclusion of the inspection, Mr.
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Martinez presented and discussed with Dr.l ]Fonn FDA 483, Inspectional
Observations. We wish to emphasize the following:

1. You failed to ensure that the investigations were conducted according to the
investigation plan [21 CFR 312.60].

To e.valuate the safety oil )he protocols required thatl

- -
_ . . ]values were to be recorded at 1 through

5 minute intervals during the induction ofC .. ] and at 10 minute intervals during
the maintenance ofl . ] In addition, ~ - J
values were to be recorded before premedication, before induction, and at 1,2,3,5,
and 10 minutes after the beginning of the induction injection ofl JManyof
.these safe.!l variables were not recorded during the induction and maintenance of
l Jor subject}in both protocoll ]and Rrotocoll JFor
example, for protocol,L Jfor subject! JOIl Jvalues were not recorded at
minutes 1 or 5{ ]Values were not recorded-at baseline, at minute 1, 3, or 5 after
the induction injection Ofl , Jan~l ]values were not recorded until 10
minutes after the induction otl JFor subject[J-08,l Jvalues were not
recorded at ba~eli~e, or at m,i~utes 1,2,3, or 5; and[ J v~lues werepot recor?ed
before preI,nedlcatlOn, or at mmutes 1,3, or 5. For protocolL J for subjects

. [ }58 andL ]60,l ]values were not recorded at baseline, and no values
for any of the required variables were recorded at the 2 minute mark.

We note that in the March 15,2006, response to the Fonn FDA 483, Drt ] states
that it was not surprising that required values were missed due to the study design. As
the clinical investigator of the study, it is your responsibility to assure that the study is
conducted according to the investigational plan. If it is apparent that the study cannot
be conducted as required, the sponsor should be notified, the protocol amended, and
study procedures changed.

2. You failed to maintain adequate records of the disposition of the drug, including
dates, quantity, and use by subject [21 CFR 312.62(a)].

a. Operating room phannacy 109§ were no!. kept. There were no records for the
prep.ar.ation and dispensing otL Jfor subjects in protocolsL ]
andL J

b. You did nl?t maintain adequate records ofpartially used and d}scarded vials of
l. _ Jandl ]The actual amount of[ _ Jandl . ]
administered to subjects in protocols L ] and[ Jcould not be
verified.

We find the March 15,2006, response to the Fonn FDA 483 inadequate'in that there
was no detailed explanation of how drug accountability procedures would be
improved to assure that adequate records of all study drugs used and discarded would
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be maintained. To say that it would be helpful to use an Operating Room Pharmacy
Log for future trials is not sufficient.

3. You failed to maintain accurate and adequate case histories that record all
observations and other data pertinent to the investigation on each individual
administered the investigational drug [21 CFR 312.62(b)].

Discrepancies were noted among the lists that recorded the initials of subjects who
were enrolled in the study using protocoll Jand received stud~drug. For
example, on the Master Subject List, subject) J03 had the initialsl Jhowever

i
on

the subject list maintaiped by the study coordinator in the operating ro.om, subjectL ]
03 had the initialsL JSubject[ 103 was not listed as a subject that received study
m~dication on the Invrstt9ational Product Drug Utilization Form (IPDUF)_. SubjectL}27 had the initialsl jon the Master Subject List and the IPDUF, andL Jon the
stuay coordinator's list. Also, sUbjectL }32 had the initials [ Jon the Master
Subject List and the initialsl Jon the study coordinator's list and the IPDUF.

We acknowledge the explanations provided in the response to the Form FDA 483
dated March 15,2006, for the above discrepancies in subject initials. However, we
note that the explanations provided actually indicate that additional inaccurate study
information was reported. For example, the response explains that subjectl ]was
scheduled to received study drug as subject[ J02, however the drug was not
prepared in time s{. Jwas not randomized. Subject ]was randomized and
apparently received the study drug as subjectL )03. While this c()Uld explain the
discrepancies between the initials on the Master Subject Listl "land those on the
study coordinator's list l Jit highlights the fact that the IPD~incorrectly
reportedL Jas actually receIving drug. Similarly the response explains that subject

[ }vas s~heduled for sur~ery as subjectl J32; ho~ever,f ]decided not to
partIcIpate III the study and L ]was enrolled assubJect[ ]?2. l lwas
apparently administered the drug originally intended fore "lbut theiPDUF
incorrectly indicates that[ Jreceived study drug. As a resutt of these
discrepancies, it is not possible to determine which patients actually received study
drug.

4. You failed to obtain informed consent in accordance with 21 CFR Part 50 [21
CFR 312.60,21 CFR 50.20, AND 21 CFR 50.25].

Specifically, you failed to provide subjects with a description of any reasonable
foreseeable risks or discomforts to the subjects as required by 21 CFR
50.25~)(2).The informed consent forms used for protocolS~ ]andl .

Jdid not explain all the risks associated with the use 0

Jin gen~ral. For example, apne~ an respiratory depression
are known risks associated withl _ Jand allergic rea.ctions,
bradycardia, hypotension, are additional risks associated with the use ot[ Jin
general.
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This letter is not intended to be an all-inclusive list of deficiencies with your clinical
study of an investigational drug. It is your responsibility to ensure adherence to each
requirement of the law and relevant FDA regulations. You should address the
deficiencies noted above and establish procedures to ensure that anyon-going or future
studies will be in compliance with FDA regulations.

Within fifteen (15) working days of your receipt of this letter, you should notify this
office in writing of the actions you have taken or will be taking to prevent similar
violations in the future. Failure to adequately and promptly explain the violations noted
above may result in regulatory action without further notice.

If you have any questions, please contact Constance Lewin, M.D., M.P.H., at (301) 796­
3397; FAX (301) 847-8748. Your written response and any pertinent documentation
should be addressed to:

Constance Lewin, M.D., M.P.H.
Branch Chief
Good Clinical Practice Branch I
Division of Scientific Investigations, Bldg. 51, Rm. 5354
Office of Compliance
Center for Drug Evaluation and Research
Food and Drug Administration
10903 New Hampshire Avenue
Silver Spring, MD 20993

Sincerely yours,

{See appended electronic signature page}·

Leslie Ball, M.D.
Director
Division of Scientific Investigations
Office of Compliance
Center for Drug Evaluation and Research

cc:l ]M.D.
Department of Anesthesiology and Pain Management
University of Texas Southwestern Medical Center
5323 Harry Hines Boulevard
Dallas, Texas 75390

r- JM.D.
Department of Anesthesiology and Pain Management
University of Texas Southwestern Medical Center
5353 Harry Hines Boulevard
Dallas, Texas 75390



This is a representation of an electronic record that was signed electronically and
this page is the manifestation of the electronic signature.

/s/

Leslie Ball
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